
COMMISSIONERS: TO ASSIST IN ESTABLISHING QUORUMS REQUIRED TO CONDUCT MEETINGS, PLEASE CONTACT THE PLANNING 
DEPARTMENT IF YOU ARE UNABLE TO ATTEND A SCHEDULED MEETING. 

 

 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024, 7:00 PM 
 

IN-PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: VIA ZOOM MEETING, INSTRUCTIONS PROVIDED BELOW 

  
I. CALL TO ORDER: 
 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): 
 
III.  PUBLIC HEARING(S): (Notice requirements met, hearing may commence unless otherwise noted) 

 
1. V202401 – Richard DeCarli, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 7.9.C-Rear Lot Requirement: to allow a driveway serving a proposed rear lot 
to be outside of the fee simple accessway at 189 Sadds Mill Road, APN 100-008-0002 in a Rural 
Agricultural Residential (RAR) zone. 

 
2. V202402 – MCC Lake Properties Trust, owner/applicant, request for variance of Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 35ft to 
15ft to demolish and rebuild a home at 28 East Shore Road, APN 169-035-0000 in a Residential 
(R) zone. 

 
3. V202403 – Lindsey Beaudry, owner/applicant, request for variance of Ellington Zoning 

Regulations Section 3.2.3-Minimum Yard Setbacks: to reduce the front yard setback from 35ft to 
1ft, side yard setback from 10ft to 1ft, and rear yard setback from 10ft to 8ft to replace existing 
shed at 117 West Shore Road, APN 168-121-0000 in a Lake Residential (LR) zone. 

 
VI. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of the December 4, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. 
2. Election of Officers for 2024. 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 

a. Cease and Desist Order, dated March 14, 2024, 3 Jobs Hill Road, violation of the Ellington 
Zoning Regulations. 

V.  ADJOURNMENT:   
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
Instructions to attend remotely via Zoom Meeting listed below. The agenda is posted on the Town of Ellington 
webpage (www.ellington-ct.gov) under Agenda & Minutes, Zoning Board of Appeals. 
Join Zoom Meeting via link:                  Join Zoom Meeting by phone: 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83540700550   1 646 558 8656 US (New York)  
Meeting ID: 835 4070 0550         Meeting ID: 835 4070 0550 
Passcode: 594227      Passcode: 594227  

 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120         TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE    FAX (860) 870-3122 

 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/84684338140
http://www.ellington-ct.gov/




Town of Ellington, CT March 6, 2024

189 Sadds Mill Road

Property Information

Property ID 100 008 0002
Location 189 SADDS MILL RD
Owner DECARLI RICHARD J

MAP FOR REFERENCE ONLY
NOT A LEGAL DOCUMENT

Town of Ellington, CT makes no claims and no warranties,
expressed or implied, concerning the validity or accuracy of
the GIS data presented on this map.

Geometry updated 11/11/2021
Data updated daily

Print map scale is approximate.
Critical layout or measurement
activities should not be done using
this resource.

1" = 200 ft





















2023_12-04 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 1 of 4 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 

MONDAY, DECEMBER 4, 2023, 7:00 PM 
 

IN PERSON ATTENDANCE: TOWN HALL ANNEX, 57 MAIN STREET, ELLINGTON, CT 
REMOTE ATTENDANCE: ZOOM MEETING  

(ATTENDEES BELOW WERE IN PERSON UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED) 
 

PRESENT: Vice Chairman Sulakshana Thanvanthri, Regular members Ken Braga, Katherine 
Heminway Subhra Roy, Alternates Ron Brown and Rodger Hosig  

 
ABSENT:  Chairman Art Aube and Alternate Ron Stomberg 

 
STAFF 
PRESENT: John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner/Zoning Enforcement Officer, and Barbra 

Galovich, Recording Clerk 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER:  Chairman Art Aube called the Zoning Board of Appeals (ZBA) meeting to 
order at 7:00 pm.  

 
II. PUBLIC COMMENTS (ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS): None 

 
III. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 

 
Barbra Galovich read a statement of conduct and appeal procedural statement. 
  
1. V202311 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, to appeal a decision of the Zoning 

Enforcement Officer in letter dated October 10, 2023, Section 3.2.2(3)-Lot Requirements 
and Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot Requirements of the Ellington Zoning Regulations pertaining 
to property located south of Hawks Nest Trail known as APN 004-002-0000. 

 
Time:    7:01 pm 
Seated: Thanvanthri, Braga, Heminway, Roy, and Hosig 
   
Stephen Williams, 36 Buff Cap Road, Tolland, CT and Russell Heintz, 50 Spak Road, 
Willington, CT were present to represent the appeal. 
 
John Colonese, Assistant Town Planner, stated Stephen William, the owner of the property 
known as APN 004-002-0000 south of Hawks Nest Trail, presented the Planning 
Department with the Lot Split Perimeter Boundary Survey by Russell Heintz dated 
September 12, 2023, showing the property divided into two lots, and a letter from Attorney 
Muska dated February 8, 2023, noting there has been no division or conveyance of the 
parcel since prior to the adoption of the Ellington Subdivision Regulations, therefore the 
division of the parcel into 2 pieces is a first division and exempt from subdivision regulations.  

 

  
 

STATE OF CONNECTICUT – COUNTY OF TOLLAND 
INCORPORATED 1786 

TOWN OF ELLINGTON 
55 MAIN STREET – PO BOX 187 

ELLINGTON, CONNECTICUT  06029-0187 
www.ellington-ct.gov 

 
TEL. (860) 870-3120        TOWN PLANNER’S OFFICE  FAX (860) 870-3122 
 

 

http://www.ellington-ct.gov/


2023_12-04 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 2 of 4 

John Colonese said he did not dispute the property owner’s entitlement to divide the 
property into two parcels without subdivision approval based on Attorney Muska’s letter. 
John said the proposed two lots as shown in the Lot Split Survey do not comply with the 
zoning regulations, so a response letter dated October 10, 2023, was sent to Stephen 
Williams.   
 
John Colonese noted, the original lot does not have any lot width (defined as width of a lot 
taken at the street line) hence it is nonconforming to the zoning regulations and is protected 
as a Non-conforming Lot of Record pursuant to Section 2.2.5. Should the owner want to 
construct one dwelling on the lot, it would be allowed pursuant to this section. However, if 
the lot is divided this protection is lost, and the lots must comply with the zoning regulations. 
The two proposed lots do not have any lot width and consequently do not comply with 
Section 3.2.2(3)-Lot Requirements and Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot Requirements. Section 
3.2.2(3) requires a lot to have a minimum lot width of 125 feet in the Rural Agricultural 
Residential (RAR) zone. Section 7.9(C) requires a rear lot have a minimum of a 25-foot-
wide fee simple access fronting on a private street. Also, if the lot contains enough area 
such that it may, in the future, be further divided into additional building lots, the fee simple 
access strip shall be a minimum of 50 feet wide.  
 
John Colonese refenced his memorandum dated November 28, 2023, which disputes the 
part of the Appeal stating, “…that each parcel would be eligible for building permits as a pre-
existing lot of record with ingress, egress and utilities to be provided to the site within the 
existing permanent easement and right of way running from Hawk’s Nest Trail to the subject 
property.” After the parcels are divided into two lots, they are no longer a pre-existing lot of 
record, and the erection of a dwelling cannot be permitted pursuant to Section 2.2.5. John 
added that the Appeal at the top of Page 2 seems to support the October 10, 2023, letter by 
noting that the property, if divided, will not meet all the rear lot requirements as the two lots 
will not have a “25-foot-wide fee simple access fronting on a…private street”. Lastly, the 
Appeal references a court Stipulated Judgement which states in Paragraph 8, “All 
development work in the subdivision performed by Mr. Williams shall be done in accordance 
with the inland wetlands and zoning regulations of the Town of Ellington, and all applicable 
laws and regulations.” John reiterated that the proposed two lots as shown on the Lot Split 
Survey do not comply with the zoning regulations. 
 
Stephen Williams stated that the property was purchased around a year ago. When 
conducting research on the property within the Town records Stephen found that a highway 
was noted within the deeds for the property. Stephen disagrees with John Colonese’s 
interpretation and noted the parcel is overlaid with a highway and that it is already two pieces 
because the highway runs through it. Stephen Williams handed out a deed from 1859 noting 
the highway laid over the parcel, as well as two additional maps. Vice Chairman Thanvanthri 
stated the lot of record survey does not show the overlaid highway.  
 
Russell Heintz said the previous Town Engineer had concerns with the 1980 Planning and 
Zoning Commission subdivision application, recommending the subdivision not block off 
access to this parcel and that it should continue Hayes Avenue towards Wapping Wood 
Road. Russell Heintz reconfirmed that the deed states the parcel is overlaid with a highway 
and that Tripp Road was intended to pass through this parcel. 

  
Stephen Williams reviewed his right to split the lot into two pieces based on the definition of 
subdivision pursuant to state statute and that the Planning and Zoning Commission should 
have left ownership access to the parcel with their 1980 subdivision approval.  

 



2023_12-04 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 3 of 4 

Commissioner Hosig stated that the Tripp Road issue is not part of the Appeal. 
Commissioner Heminway agreed with Commissioner Hosig. 
 
No one from the public spoke regarding the appeal. 
 
MOVE (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE 
THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR THE APPEAL V202311. 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO WHOLLY 
AFFIRM V202311 – Decision of the Zoning Enforcement Officer in letter to Stephen D. 
Williams dated October 10, 2023, Section 3.2.2(3)-Lot Requirements and Section 7.9(C)-
Rear Lot Requirements of the Ellington Zoning Regulations pertaining to property located 
south of Hawks Nest Trail known as APN 004-002-0000. 
 
REASON FOR DECISION: Proposed lots do not comply with the zoning regulations. 
Historical records are not adequate to dispute the zoning regulations. 
 

2. V202311 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request for variance of the Ellington 
Zoning Regulations Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot Requirements: to allow access over an 
easement for two proposed rear lots on property located south of Hawks Nest Trail known 
as APN 004-002-0000 in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) zone. 
 
Time:    7:38 pm 
Seated: Thanvanthri, Braga, Heminway, Roy, and Hosig 
   
Stephen Williams, 36 Buff Cap Road, Tolland, CT and Russell Heintz, 50 Spak Road, 
Willington, CT were present to represent the application. 
 
Stephen Willams referenced the reasoning in the variance application narrative. Stephen 
noted the 1980 Planning and Zoning Commission subdivision approval did not allow 
frontage and instead established the 50 foot right of way. Stephen explained the outcome 
of the court Stipulated Judgement, giving access to the parcel over the Kupferschmid and 
Gates properties. The North Central District Health Department approved soil data for the 
proposed lot split. Stephen noted the court decision stated the parcel can only be divided 
into two lots and is therefore requesting a variance to allow access to the two lots over the 
existing easement. 
 
Commissioner Heminway asked if the right of way frontage is 50 feet on Hawks Nest Trail.  
Russell Heintz confirmed that it is 50 feet. Stephen Williams says attorneys have 
commented that easement access is as good as owning the 50-foot-wide strip. 
 
Commissioner Braga asked Stephen Williams if they have access rights over Hawks Nest 
Trail. Stephen Williams confirmed they acquired rights over the portion of Hawks Nest Trail 
to Hayes Avenue. 
 
Stephen Williams believes the hardship is that 1980 subdivision approval should have asked 
for an extension of the road as opposed to a right of way.  
 
John Colonese stated should the variance be granted; the applicant will need to apply to the 
Planning and Zoning Commission to request a Special Permit for the two rear lots. 
 
No one from the public spoke regarding the request for a variance. 
 



2023_12-04 Zoning Board of Appeals 
Minutes 

Page 4 of 4 

MOVE (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO CLOSE 
THE PUBLIC HEARING FOR V202311. 
 
MOVED (HEMINWAY), SECONDED (BRAGA) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE W/CONDITION(S) V202311 – Stephen D. Williams, owner/applicant, request 
for variance of the Ellington Zoning Regulations Section 7.9(C)-Rear Lot Requirements: to 
allow access over an easement for two proposed rear lots on property located south of 
Hawks Nest Trail known as APN 004-002-0000 in a Rural Agricultural Residential (RAR) 
zone. 
 
Conditions:  
1) Easement shall allow access for no more than two rear lots. 
2) Two rear lots shall obtain any other permits or approvals required by law or regulation.  
 
Hardship: Property landlocked by previous zoning decisions which cut off access to the lot. 

 
IV. ADMINISTRATIVE BUSINESS: 

 
1. Approval of the October 2, 2023, Regular Meeting Minutes. 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (ROY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO APPROVE 
OCTOBER 2, 2023, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES AS WRITTEN. 

 
2. Approval of the 2024 Zoning Board of Appeals Meeting Schedule 
 

MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
APPROVE THE 2024 ZBA MEETING SCHEDULE AS PROPOSED. 

 
3. Correspondence/Discussion: 

 
4. Commissioner training pursuant to Public Act 21-29. 

 
V. ADJOURNMENT: 

 
MOVED (BRAGA), SECONDED (HEMINWAY) AND PASSED UNANIMOUSLY TO 
ADJOURN THE ZBA MEETING AT 7:58 PM. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
_____________________________ 
Barbra Galovich, Recording Clerk 






	MONDAY, APRIL 1, 2024, 7:00 PM
	2024-02-27 Site plan.pdf
	Image_20240307_0001
	Image_20240307_0002
	Image_20240307_0003




